

tion to readopt, revise or amend this Constitution, and such amendments as may have been made thereto.

§ 259. **Delegates—number and qualifications of.** The Convention shall consist of as many delegates as there are members of the House of Representatives; and the delegates shall have the same qualifications and be elected from the same districts as said Representatives.

§ 260. **Delegates—election and meeting of.** Delegates to such convention shall be elected at the next general State election after the passage of the act calling the Convention, which does not occur within less than ninety days; and they shall meet within ninety days after their election at the Capital of the State, and continue in session until their work is completed.

§ 261. **Election—General Assembly to provide for holding.** The General Assembly, in the act in calling the Convention, shall provide for comparing the polls and giving certificates of election to the delegates elected, and provide for their compensation.

§ 262. **Convention judge of qualifications of members.** The convention, when assembled, shall be the judge of the election and qualification of its members, and shall determine contested elections. But the General Assembly shall, in the act calling the Convention, provide for taking testimony in such cases, and for issuing a writ of election in case of a tie.

§ 263. **Publication of notice of election.** Before a vote is taken upon the question of calling a convention, the Secretary of State shall cause notice of the election to be published in such manner as may be provided by the act directing said vote to be taken.

SCHEDULE.

That no inconvenience may arise from the alterations and amendments made in this Constitution, and in order to carry the same into complete operation, it is hereby declared and ordained:

1. That all laws of this Commonwealth in force at the time of the adoption of this Constitution, not inconsistent therewith, shall remain in full force until altered or repealed by the General Assembly; and all rights, actions, prosecutions, claims and contracts of the State, counties, individuals or bodies corporate, not inconsistent therewith, shall continue as valid as if this Constitution had not been adopted. The provisions of all laws which are inconsistent with this Constitution shall cease upon its adoption, except that all laws which are inconsistent with such provisions as require legislation to enforce them shall remain in force until such legislation is had, but not longer than six years after the adoption of this Constitution, unless sooner amended or repealed by the General Assembly.

2. That all recognizances, obligations and all other instruments entered

into or executed before the adoption of this Constitution, to the State, or to any city, town, county or subdivision thereof, and all fines, taxes, penalties and forfeitures due or owing to this State, or to any city, town, county or subdivision thereof; and all writs, prosecutions, actions and causes of action, except as otherwise herein provided, shall continue and remain unaffected by the adoption of this Constitution. And all indictments which shall have been found, or may hereafter be found, for any crime or offense committed before this Constitution takes effect, may be prosecuted as if no change had taken place, except as otherwise provided in this Constitution.

3. All circuit, chancery, criminal, law and equity, law, and Common Pleas Courts, as now constituted and organized by law, shall continue with their respective jurisdictions until the Judges of the Circuit Courts provided for in this Constitution shall have been elected and qualified, and shall then cease and determine; and the causes, actions and proceedings then pending in said first named courts, which are discontinued by this Constitution, shall be transferred to, and tried by, the Circuit Courts in the counties, respectively, in which said causes, actions and proceedings are pending.

4. The Treasurer, Attorney-General, Auditor of Public Accounts, Superintendent of Public Instruction, and Register of the Land Office, elected in eighteen hundred and ninety-one, shall hold their offices until the first Monday in January, eighteen hundred and ninety-six, and until the election and qualification of their successors. The Governor and Lieutenant-Governor elected in eighteen hundred and ninety-one shall hold their offices until the sixth Tuesday after the first Monday in November, eighteen hundred and ninety-five, and until their successors are elected and qualified. The Governor and Treasurer elected in eighteen hundred and ninety-one shall be ineligible to the succeeding term. The Governor elected in eighteen hundred and ninety-one may appoint a Secretary of State and a Commissioner of Agriculture, Labor and Statistics, as now provided, who shall hold their offices until their successors are elected and qualified, unless sooner removed by the Governor. The official bond of the present Treasurer shall be renewed at the expiration of two years from the time of his qualification.

5. All officers who may be in office at the adoption of this Constitution, or who may be elected before the election of their successors, as provided in this Constitution shall hold their respective offices until their successors are elected or appointed and qualified, as provided in this Constitution.

6. The Quarterly Courts created by this Constitution shall be the successors of the present statutory Quarterly Courts in the several counties of this State, and all suits, proceedings, prosecutions, records and judgments now pending or being in said last named courts shall, after the adoption of this Constitution, be transferred to the Quarterly Courts created by this Constitution, and shall proceed as though the same had been therein instituted.

ORDINANCE.

We, the representatives of the people of Kentucky, in Convention assembled, in their name and by their authority and in virtue of the power vested in us as Delegates from the counties and districts respectively affixed to our names, do ordain and proclaim the foregoing to be the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Kentucky from and after this date.

Done at Frankfort this twenty-eighth day of September, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and ninety-one, and in the *ninety-ninth year of the Commonwealth.

CASSIUS M. CLAY, JR.,

President of the Convention and member from the county of Bourbon.

THOMAS G. POORE, *Secretary.*

JAMES B. MARTIN, *Assistant Secretary.*

JAMES EDWARDS STONE, *Reading Clerk.*

From the county of Adair—James F. Montgomery.

From the county of Allen—William J. McElroy.

From the county of Anderson—Thomas Holman Hanks.

From the counties of Ballard and Carlisle—Wm. J. Edrington.

From the county of Barren—S. H. Boles.

From the counties of Bath and Rowan—L. P. V. Williams.

From the county of Bracken—W. W. Field.

From the counties of Breathitt, Morgan and Magoffin—J. E. Quicksall.

From the county of Boone—L. W. Lassing.

From the county of Boyle—R. P. Jacobs.

From the counties of Boyd and Lawrence—Laban T. Moore.

From the counties of Bullitt and Spencer—Frank P. Straus.

From the counties of Butler and Edmonson—J. M. Forgy.

From the county of Breckinridge—William Miller.

From the county of Caldwell—Cornelius Tacitus Allen.

From the county of Calloway—W. W. Ayres.

From the county of Campbell—George Washington and George F. Truesdell.

From the county of Carroll—Hezekiah Cox.

From the counties of Carter and Elliott—R. T. Parsons.

From the county of Christian—John D. Clardy.

From the counties of Clay, Jackson and Owsley—S. P. Hogg.

From the county of Clark—W. M. Beckner.

From the counties of Crittenden and Livingston—Thomas J. Nunn.

From the counties of Clinton and Cumberland—J. A. Brents.

From the counties of Casey and Russell—John L. Phelps.

From the county of Daviess—Thomas S. Pettit and B. T. Birkhead.

From the counties of Estill and Lee—J. F. West.

From the county of Fayette—P. P. Johnston.

From the city of Lexington—C. J. Bronston.

From the county of Fleming—William Jackson Hendrick.

From the counties of Floyd, Knott and Letcher—F. A. Hopkins.

From the county of Franklin—Thomas H. Hines.

From the counties of Fulton and Hickman—Jno. M. Brummal.

From the county of Gallatin—James S. Brown.

From the county of Garrard—Wm. Berkele.

From the county of Grant—R. H. O Hara.

From the county of Grayson—Chas. Durbin, Jr.

From the counties of Green and Taylor—J. M. Wood.

From the county of Greenup—Benj. F. Bennett.

From the county of Graves—T. J. Elmore.

From the county of Hardin—Harvey Harold Smith.

From the county of Harrison—W. H. Martin.

From the county of Hart—Simon Bolivar Buckner.

From the counties of Harlan, Bell, Perry and Leslie—J. G. Forrester.

From the county of Henderson—H. H. Farmer.

From the county of Hopkins—H. R. Bourland.

From the county of Henry—John D. Carroll.

From the county of Hancock—G. D. Chambers.

From the county of Jefferson—Sam E. English.

From the county of Jessamine—John W. Holloway.

From the county of Kenton—D. A. Glenn.

*Should be "one hundredth."

- From the City of Covington—*
*First District—*Wm. Goebel.
*Second District—*William Hardia Mackoy.
From the counties of Knox and Whitley—
 Nathan Buchanan.
*From the county of Larue—*Iverson W. Twyman.
From the counties of Laurel and Rockcastle—
 William Randall Ramsey.
*From the county of Lewis—*Sam'l J. Pugh.
*From the county of Lincoln—*W. H. Miller.
*From the county of Logan—*J. Guthrie Coker.
From the city of Louisville—
*First District—*Zack Phelps.
*Second District—*Meverell Knox Allen.
*Third District—*Morris A. Sachs.
*Fourth District—*Bennett H. Young.
*Fifth District—*Edward John McDermott.
*Sixth District—*Edward Emmett Kirwan.
*Seventh District—*John Thompson Funk.
*From the county of Marion—*J. Proctor Knott.
*From the county of Madison—*Curtis F. Burnam.
From the counties of Marshall and Lyon—
 Samuel Graham.
*From the county of Mason—*Emery Whitaker.
*From the counties of Martin, Johnson and Pike—*A. J. Auxier.
*From the county of McCracken—*W. G. Bullitt.
*From the county of McLean—*Jep. C. Jonson.
*From the counties of Montgomery, Powell, Wolfe and Menefee—*G. B. Swango.
- From the county of Mercer—*Jas. H. Moore.
*From the county of Meade—*Jas. F. Woolfolk.
*From the county of Muhlenburg—*Addison D. James.
From the counties of Metcalfe and Monroe—
 W. Scott Smith.
*From the county of Nelson—*J. W. Muir.
From the counties of Nicholas and Robertson—
 Hanson Kennedy.
From the counties of Oldham and Trimble—
 S. E. DeHaven.
*From the county of Owen—*Joseph Blackwell.
*From the county of Ohio—*John J. McHenry,
 successor to Henry D. McHenry.
*From the county of Pendleton—*Leslie Thomas Applegate.
*From the county of Pulaski—*John S. May.
*From the county of Scott—*Jas. F. Askew.
*From the county of Shelby—*J. C. Beckham.
*From the county of Simpson—*Geo. C. Harris.
*From the county of Todd—*Hazel G. Petrie.
*From the county of Trigg—*W. W. Lewis.
*From the county of Union—*Ignatius A. Spalding.
*From the county of Warren—*Robert Rodes and Daniel C. Amos.
*From the county of Wayne—*J. S. Hines.
*From the county of Washington—*W. C. McChord.
*From the county of Webster—*W. F. Doris.
*From the county of Woodford—*James Blackburn.

INDEX

TO

PRESENT CONSTITUTION COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY.

	SEC.		SEC.
Abuse of corporate charters—		Arms—	
effect of	205	right to bear	1
Accused—		safe keeping of public arms	223
rights of	11, 12, 13	Army, standing—	
Action—		when may be maintained	22
against the Commonwealth	231	Arrest—	
begun before adoption of Constitu- tion (see schedule).		members of Legislature, freedom from	43
for damages in certain cases	241	Assembling together—	
recovery of certain lands	251	right of people	1
Adjournment of Houses—		Assessment—	
by Governor	80	of damages in certain cases	242
during session	41	property for taxation	172
Adjutant-General—		railroads	182
appointment by Governor	222	Assessors—	
Agent of Foreign Corporation—		bond may be required of	103
corporation must have agent in State,	194	election of	99
Agriculture, labor and statistics—		fees regulated by law	106
see Commissioner of.		indictment against for certain offenses	227
Agricultural and mechanical col- lege—		ineligible for succeeding term	104
tax for benefit of	184	office, when to enter upon duties of	99
Amendment—		may be abolished	104
of bills	51	penalty for willful errors in assess- ment	172
constitution	256, 257	qualifications of	100
Appeals, Court of—		removal from office for certain offenses	227
see Court of Appeals.		residence of, to be in county	234
Appeal—		term of office	99
assessment of damages	242	vacancy in office, how filled	152
right of certain officers to	227	Assignment of cities and towns—	
Alleys—		two classes	156
local laws concerning forbidden	59	Association—	
Appropriation—		embraced in word "corporation"	208
audited claims to pay	58	Attainder—	
bill, when to become a law	55	effect of	20
by Legislature, of money	230	Attachment—	
votes, necessary to pass	46	earnings of railroads subject to	212
Arbitrary power—		Attorney, Commonwealth's—	
declaration against	2	election and term of office	97
Arbitration—		fees allowed to	98
laws to be enacted concerning	250	can not be remitted	77
Armed bodies of men—		payment of fees to	98
not to be brought into State—except- tion	225	office, may be abolished	108
		when to enter upon duties of	97
		vacancies in, how filled	152

	SEC.		SEC.
Attorney, Commonwealth's—		Bills—	
qualifications of	100	member, when not to vote	57
salary of	98	passage of	46
county may add to	98	reading before passage	46
vacancy in office, how filled	152	signing	56
Attorney, County—		reported by committee	46
bond may be required of	103	revenue, House to originate bill for	47
election and term of office	99	shall refer to only one subject	51
fees regulated by law	106	signing of	56
indictment for neglect, etc	227	title shall contain subject	51
office, when to enter upon duties of	99	veto of by Governor	88
qualifications of	100	when Legislature not in session	88
vacancy in office, how filled	152	votes, number required to pass	46
Attorney-General—		when to become a law	55
compensation of	96	years and nays to be called	46
duties of prescribed by law	91	Binding and printing—	
under sections	213-217	performed under contract	247
election and term of office	91-95	Blind persons—	
for when held	95	provision for voting	147
fees collected by, payment of	93	Bonds—	
Government, when administered by	87	Commonwealth's bonds held by Board	
ineligible for succeeding term	93	of Education	184, 186, 188
office, when to enter upon duties of	91	officers may be required to give	103, 224
qualifications of	91, 92	release of sureties in official	238
salary of	96	Borrowing money—	
Senate, when to be convened by	87	by State, counties and cities	178, 179
vacancy in office, how filled	152	Bribery—	
Auditor of Public Accounts—		candidate for office bribing	151
compensation, how paid	96	corporation, bribery by	150
election and term of office	91-95	disfranchises offender	150, 151
examination of accounts of	53	member of Legislature, bribing or	
fees collected by, payment of	93	attempting	39
ineligible for succeeding term	93	Bridge companies—	
office, when to enter upon duties of	91	sections relating to	201, 213, 214, 216, 217
qualifications of	91	Burial place—	
vacancy in office, how filled	152	when exempt from taxation	170
Ball—		Capitol of State—	
allowed, when	16	location at Frankfort	255
excessive, not to be required	17	municipal aid to build	179
Ballot—		Carrier—	
provision for voting by (see elections)	147	common (see common carrier).	
Bank of Kentucky—		Casualty—	
stock held by State in (see educa-		estate not affected by death from	21
tion)	184, 185	Cemeteries—	
Bank¹—		special acts concerning, forbidden	59
penalty for office of insolvent receiv-		Census—	
ing deposits	204	federal to govern classification of	
Belt lines of railway—		cities	156
provisions concerning	213-217	Certificates of election—	
Bill of rights—		Legislature to provide for issual	153
inviolable	1-26	Challenge to fight duel—	
Bills—		penalty for	239
amendment of	47, 51	pardon of offender by Governor	240
appropriation, veto of parts of	88	Chancery courts abolished—	
committee failing to report number		(see schedule).	
may call for	46	Change—	
to report bills	46	of venue	11
emergency clause in	55	Charitable institutions—	
Governor, bills to be presented to	56	taxation, when exempt from	170

	SEC.		SEC.
Charters—		Clerk of County Court—	
exclusive privileges, when void . . .	191	fees in certain counties	106
forfeiture for abuse or misuse . . .	205	regulated by law	106
Children—		office, removal from	124
age at which not to work at certain		vacancy in, how filled	152
places	243	when to enter upon duties of . . .	99
colored and white, separate schools for,	187	qualifications of	100
Church—		removal from office	124
State not to apply funds in aid of . .	189	vacancy in office, how filled	152
Circuit Courts—		Clerk of Court of Appeals—	
appeals and writs of error from . . .	127	appointment to fill vacancy	122
clerk (see clerk circuit court).		bond required of	103
districts, creation of	128	election and term of office	120
creation of new	132	ineligible for succeeding term	120
county may be a district	138	office, removal from	124
county when entitled to four judges,	137	vacancy in, how filled	122, 152
number of	128	when to enter upon duties of	120
when may be changed	134	qualifications of	121
established in each county	125	removal from office	124
general provisions concerning	129	vacancy in office, how filled	122, 152
judges, compensation of	133	Clerks of Legislature—	
election, time of	129	duty to present bills to Governor . . .	56
qualifications of	130	College, agricultural and mechanical—	
removal from district vacates office,	129	tax in aid of	184
vacancy in office, how filled	152	Colored and white children—	
(see judges circuit courts).		separate schools for	187
jurisdiction of	126	Combinations, trusts and pools—	
terms, three each year	131	prohibited	198
Circuit Court Clerks—		Commissioner of agriculture—	
(see clerks circuit courts).		appointment by Governor (see schedule).	
Cities and towns—		compensation	96
(see municipalities).		duties prescribed by law	91
City and police courts—		election and term of office	91-95
(see police courts).		fees collected by—payment of	93
Claims existing prior to Constitu-		ineligible for succeeding term	93
tion—		office, vacancy in, how filled	152
against counties, cities and towns,		when to enter upon duties of	91
when void	162	qualifications of	91
validity of (see schedule).		vacancy in office, how filled	152
Classification—		Commissioners of county—	
of cities and towns	156	may compose fiscal court	144
Clerks—		Commission—	
fees can not be remitted by Governor,	77	to revise laws	245
Clerk of Circuit Court—		Commission—	
bond required of	103	railroad (see railroad commission).	
election and term of office	97	Commissions—	
examination, eligibility	100	Governor shall issue to certain officers	
fees in certain counties	106	113, 129, 140, 142
regulated by law	106	Legislature may provide for issual	153
office, removal from	124	Committee of Houses—	
when to enter upon duties of	97	duty in reporting bills	46
vacancy in, how filled	152	proceedings upon failure to report . .	46
qualifications of	100	Common carriers—	
removal from office	124	common law liability not avoided by	
residence to be in county	234	contract	196
vacancy in office, how filled	152	consolidation by carriers, provisions	
Clerk of County Court—		concerning	200, 201
bond required of	103	earnings when not to be shared with	
election and term of office	99	another	201

	SEC.		SEC.
Common carriers—		Corporations—	
free passes not to be given	197	consolidation, when forbidden.	201
parallel lines not to be owned by same,	201	with foreign corporation, effect.	200
transportation may be regulated	196	damages for death or injury	241
Common schools—		directors, how elected.	207
(see schools).		discrimination by forbidden.	196
elections concerning	155	elections, penalty for interfering with	150
Legislature shall provide system	183	eminent domain, exercise of right of,	211
tax rate in municipalities	157	foreign (see foreign corporations).	
Commonwealth—		foreign and domestic on same foot-	
actions against	231	ing	202
credit not to be loaned	177	free passes, right to give restricted	197
debts, what not to be assumed by	176	laborers to be paid in money	244
Consolidation of common carriers—		land, how much may be owned	
provisions concerning	200, 201	by	192, 210
Constable—		lease of not to affect liability	203
bond required of	103	meaning of word "corporation".	208
election and term of office	99	municipal (see municipalities).	
fees regulated by law	106	property, taking of for public use	242
indictment of for certain offenses	227	taxed like that of individuals	174
office, vacancy in, how filled	152	real estate that may be held by	192, 210
when to enter upon duties of	99	special privileges in existing charters,	191
qualifications of	101	stock or bonds to be issued for value,	193
residence to be in district	234	fictitious increase of, void	193
Constitutional Convention	258-263	taxation of corporate property	174
Contempt—		telegraph connecting lines	199
of General Assembly, how punished	39	municipalities, powers of over.	199
Contested election—		telephone companies, duties of	199
member of Legislature	38	municipalities, powers of over.	199
provisions for trial of	153	wage-earners to be paid in money	244
Contracts—		Councils of cities and towns—	
law impairing prohibited	19	(see municipalities).	
prior to constitution (see schedule).		County attorney—	
municipalities, contracts of	157	(see attorney for county).	
Convention—		County court—	
to revise constitution	258, 263	establishment of	140
Convicts—		judge of a conservator of the peace	140
discipline of, to be controlled by State,	254	commissioned by the Governor	140
labor only shall be leased	254	compensation of	140
working outside prison forbidden	253	vacation of office by removal	140
Coroner—		jurisdiction of	141
bond required of	103	County court clerk—	
election and term of office	99	(see clerk of county court).	
fees regulated by law	106	County judge—	
indictment of for certain offenses	227	(see judge of county court).	
office, vacancy in, how filled	152	County officers—	
when to enter upon duties of	99	free passes not to be accepted by	197
qualifications of	100	residence to be in county or district.	234
residence to be in county	234	Counties—	
vacancy in office, how filled	152	boundary lines of new	63
Corporations—		division of	64
acceptance of constitution by	190	new counties may be created	63
agent, must have in State.	194	population of	64
assessment of property of	174	striking territory from	65
bonds or stock to be issued for value,	193	County seat—	
business that shall not be engaged in,	192	changing of	64
common law liability, not to be re-		Court of Appeals—	
lieved of	196	Chief Justice, who shall be	118
		clerk, removal of by	124

	SEC.		SEC.
Court of Appeals—		Descent and distribution—	
clerk, other provisions relating to		special laws concerning, forbidden . . .	59
(see clerk court of appeals).		Directors of corporations—	
districts, number of	116	election of	207
judges, election and term of office . .	112	Discrimination by carriers—	
elected from districts	116	forbidden	213
number of	115	Disfranchisement—	
qualifications of	114	for certain offenses	145, 150
quorum of	117	Distribution of powers of govern-	
removal from office	112	ment	27
salary of, reduction or change . .	112, 235	Districts—	
special judge, appointment of . .	117	attorneys for the Commonwealth	
judicial powers, vested in	109	elected from	97
jurisdiction of	110	constables elected from	99
process, from, style of	123	judges of circuit court to be elected	
sections, court may divide into . . .	118	from	129
terms to be held at Seat of Govern-		court of appeals to be elected from,	116
ment	111	justices to be elected from	142
Courts—		legislative districts	33
appellate (see court of appeals).		railroad commissioners elected from,	209
circuit (see circuit courts).		Divorcees—	
county (see county courts).		special laws concerning forbidden . .	59
fiscal (see fiscal courts).		Domain—	
justices (see justices' courts).		eminent (see eminent domain).	
police (see police courts).		Donation—	
quarterly (see quarterly courts).		shall not be made by State	177
superior (see superior court).		Dueling—	
open to every person	14	oath that officers shall take	228
Credit—		pardon of offense	240
of Commonwealth shall not be loaned,	177	penalty attached to	239
counties, cities or towns, restrictions		Education—	
as to loan of	179	A. & M. college, tax for	184
Criminal prosecutions—		colored and white children to share	
right of accused	11, 12, 13	equally	187
venue, change of	11	elections for school purposes	155
Crops—		funds devoted to	184, 189
growing, exempt from taxation . . .	170	Legislature to provide system	183
Damages—		pro rata division of funds	186
amount of recovery not to be limited		separate schools to be maintained . .	187
by legislation	54	tax for school purposes	157
recovered, who entitled to	241	Educational institutions—	
Death—		when exempt from taxation	170
by negligence, recovery for	241	Elections—	
by suicide or casualty, estate not af-		ballot to be secret	147
fected	21	blind and disabled persons, how to	
Defendant in criminal cases—		vote	147
rights of	11, 12, 13	bribery, penalty for	150, 151
Debtor—		contested—how determined	38, 90
imprisonment when allowed	18	corporation interfering in—penalty . .	150
Debts—		day elections shall be held on	148
counties, when State may assume . .	176	liquor, election as to sale of . . .	61
limit of State debt	49	municipal elections	148
municipalities, how created	157, 158	only one election day each year	148
releasing of, when not allowed	52	disabled persons—how to vote	147
tax, when levied to pay	159	disfranchisement—conviction for fel-	
Deduction from officer's salary . . .	235	ony	145
Delegates to Constitutional Conven-		disqualified persons	145, 146
tion	258-263	electors—qualifications of	145
		employees to be given time to vote . .	148

	SEC.		SEC.
Elections—		Express companies—	
felony—conviction of disfranchises		provisions concerning	200
.	145, 150	Ex post facto laws—	
free and equal—guaranteed	6	shall not be enacted	19
hours between which election held	148	Factories—	
idiots and insane persons can not vote,	145	laborers in to be paid in money	244
illiterate persons—voting by	147	Federal census—	
Legislature shall regulate except	155	govern classification of cities	156
liquor—election concerning may be		Fees—	
held any day	61	collected by certain officers to be paid	
sale on election day forbidden	154	into treasury	93,106
male citizens twenty-one years of age		Governor can not remit certain fees	77
voters	145	officers who receive a per cent. of	106
meaning of word "elections"	147	regulated by law	106
misdemeanor—when conviction dis-		Felony—	
franchises	145, 150	persons convicted, disfranchised, 145, 150	
municipal elections—when to be held		Fencing—	
.	148, 166, 167	local laws concerning, forbidden	59
officers of election—qualifications of, 148		Fines—	
State, county, city, town and dis-		excessive, shall not be imposed	17
trict—day of election of	148	Fiscal court—	
people—election by to be by secret		each county shall have	144
ballot	147	persons who compose	144
persons who can not vote	145, 146	Fiscal offices—	
precinct, residence in required	145	provisions concerning	160
privilege of voters from arrest	149	Fiscal year—	
registration, provisions for	147	begins July first	169
when a prerequisite to voting	147	Floating debt of municipalities—	
representatives, <i>viva voce</i> elections by, 147		funding of	158
residence in precinct required	145	Foreign corporations—	
sale of liquor on election day forbid-		agents, must have one in State	194
den	154	consolidation with domestic, effect	200
elections concerning	61	eminent domain, exercise of right of, 211	
school questions—elections concern-		land, when not to be held by	211
ing	155	rights, same as domestic	202
vacancies in office—elections to fill	152	Forfeiture—	
<i>viva voce</i> elections by representatives	147	due State prior to Constitution (see	
voters—qualifications of	145	Schedule).	
word "elections"—meaning of	147	office for accepting free pass	197
Elevators and storehouses—		bribery	150,151
subject to Legislative control	206	receiving excess of salary	246
Emergency clause—		Franchises—	
effect of the clause in bills	55	counties and cities—how obtained	
Emigration—		from	164
from State not prohibited	24	liability not affected by lease of	203
Equality—		sale of, by municipalities	164
under social compact	3	taxation of	174, 181
Escheat—		Frankfort—	
when land of corporation may	192	Seat of Government to remain at	255
Evidence—		Freedom of speech—	
accused not required to give	11	right to enjoy	1
Excise tax—		Free passes—	
may be imposed	181	giving or accepting, when forbidden, 197	
Exclusive privileges forbidden	3	Free suffrage—	
Executive department	69	Right of, to be maintained	150
Exemption from taxation	170	Gas company—	
Expenses of legislative session—		laying of pipes in cities	163
appropriation to pay	58	General Assembly—	
		adjournment of	41, 80

	SEC.		SEC.
General Assembly—		General Assembly—	
amendment of bills	47, 51	yeas and nays may be called	40
appropriation bill, passage of	46	Gift enterprises—	
to pay claims	58	forbidden	226
bills to be reported by committee	46	Governor—	
reading of	46	Adjutant-General, appointment of	222
passage of	46	army, Commander-in-Chief of	75
signing of, by presiding officer	56	not to command in field	75
emergency clause in	55	bills passed to be presented to	88
when becomes a law	55	compensation of	74, 96, 246
bribery of member, how punished	39	commissions to officers, 113, 129, 140, 142	
claims not to be audited by	58	commutation of sentences	77
collector of public money, when in-		dueling, may pardon for	240
eligible to	45	election, contested, decision of	90
compensation of members	42	term of office	70-95
contempt of, how punished	39	tie vote, how decided	70
debts that may be created by	49	fines, remission of	77
no power to release	52	ineligible for succeeding term	71
districts, members to be elected from, 33		laws, duty to be executed	81
election of members	30, 31	may be recommended by	79
emergency clause in bills	55	Legislature may be convened by	80
expenses incurred during session	58	may be adjourned by	80
indebtedness that may be created by, 49		messages to Legislature	79
investigation of Auditor and Treas-		office, when to enter upon duties of	73
urer, to provide for	53	officers to report to when requested	78
journal to be kept by each House	40	pardons, granting of	77
law, when bill becomes	55	printing, contract to be approved	247
title of	51	railroad commissioners, appointment, 209	
legislative day, what is	42	recommending laws	79
legislative power, vested in	29	remission of fines	77
limit of session	42	reports of investigations to be made	53
indebtedness that may be created by, 49		reprieves, granting of	77
local legislation prohibited	59	qualifications of	72
majority quorum	37	salary of	74, 96, 246
meeting of	36	term of office	70
members, election of	30, 31	vacancies in office filled by	76
bribery of	39	vacancy in office, how filled	152
compensation of	42	who to act	84
each House judge of qualifications, 38		veto power of	88
interested not to vote	57	of appropriation bill	88
punishment of	39	Governor-Lieutenant—	
money, when may borrow	50	compensation of	86, 96
office that can not be held by mem-		election and term of office	82-95
ber of	44	election contested, decision of	90
officers of each House	34	Governor, when to act as	84
and employes of each House	249	ineligible for succeeding term	82
powers of less than majority	37	office, when to enter upon duties of	82
presiding officer to sign bills	56	powers as president of Senate	83
privilege of members	43	qualifications of	82
qualifications of members	32	salary	86, 96
quorum	37	Senate, president of	83
representatives (see Representatives).		term of office	82
revenue bill to originate in House	47	vacancy in office, how filled	85, 152
Senate (see Senate).		Grain and produce—	
session, length of	42	laws for inspection of	206
sinking fund not to be diminished by, 48		elevators, warehouses, control of	206
special legislation prohibited	59	Grand jury—	
title of laws	51	number of persons composing	248
votes necessary to pass bill	46, 55		

	SEC.		SEC.
Grounds used for religious purposes—		Jeopardy—	
exempt from taxation	170	no person shall twice be placed in . . .	13
Habeas corpus—		Joint stock companies—	
writ of, not to be suspended unless . . .	16	embraced by "corporation."	208
Hereditary distinction—		Journals—	
Legislature not to grant title of . . .	23	each House to keep	40
Highway—		Judges of Court of Appeals—	
State shall not construct	177	chief justice, who shall be	118
Household goods—		clerk, appointment of by	122
amount exempt from taxation	170	removal of by	124
House of Reform—		certificate of qualification to	121
to be erected and maintained	252	commissioned by Governor	113
Idiots—		compensation of	112
denied right to vote	145	conservators of the peace	113
Impeachment—		districts, to be elected from	116
House of Representatives has sole		election and term of office	112, 115
power of	66	number of	115
judgment on	68	office, when to enter upon duties of . . .	112
officers liable to	68	qualifications of	114
Senate shall try cases of	67	quorum, majority constitutes	117
votes, number of necessary to convict,	67	rehearing, consideration of petition,	118
Imprisonment for debt—		residence to be in district	234
forbidden except	18	sections, may divide into	118
Incomes—		special judges, appointment of	117
may be taxed	174	term of office	112, 115
Incompatible offices	165, 237	vacancy in office, how filled	152
Indebtedness of municipalities—		Judges of circuit courts—	
limit of	158	commissioned by Governor	129
Indictable offenses—		compensation of	133
presentation of persons guilty of . . .	12	counties entitled to four judges	137
Infants—		to one or more judges	138
special laws concerning, forbidden . . .	59	election and term of office	129
Inferior officers—		office, when to enter upon duties of . .	130
election or appointment of	93	qualifications of	130
term shall not exceed four years	93	removal from district vacates office . .	129
Injuries resulting in death—		special judges	136
action for	241	term of office	129
recovery not be limited by Legisla-		vacancy in office, how filled	152
ture	54	Judges of county courts—	
Insane person—		bond shall be required of	103
denied right to vote	145	commissioned by Governor	140
Inspection of grain and produce	206	conservator of the peace	140
Involuntary servitude—		election and term of office	99
except as punishment, forbidden	25	fees of regulated by law	106
Invalid instruments—		indictment against for malfeasance,	227
special laws concerning, forbidden . . .	59	office, when to enter upon duties of . .	99
Jailer—		qualifications of	100
bond shall be required of	103	quarterly court, shall be judge of . . .	139
compensation of in certain counties . .	106	removal for neglect of duties	227
election and term of office	99	residence shall be in county	234
fees to be regulated by law	106	term of office	99
indictment against for neglect	227	vacancy in office, how filled	152
office, when to enter upon duties of . .	99	Judge of quarterly court—	
may be consolidated with sheriff . . .	105	county judge shall be	139
removal from office for malfeasance,	227	Judges of police courts—	
residence shall be in county	234	election and term of office	160
term of office	99	provision as to those elected in 1890,	167
vacancy in office, how filled	152	Judges—	
		shall not accept free pass	197

Judgment against railroad company—	SEC.	Lieutenant-Governor— (see Governor-	SEC.
enforcement of	212	Lieutenant).	
Judicial department	109	Libel—	
Jurisdiction—		jury trials of law and fact	9
of circuit courts	126	Library—	
court of appeals	110	when public exempt from taxation	170
county courts	140	Licenses—	
fiscal courts	144	taxation of	174
justices courts	142	License fees—	
police courts	143	payment of may be required	174, 181
quarterly courts	139	Limitation—	
Senate in impeachment trial	67, 109	of actions to recover certain lands	251
Jury, grand—		time certain laws can remain in force	
consists of twelve persons	248	(see schedule).	
nine may find indictment	248	Liquor—	
Jury, petit—		election concerning, may be held any	
majority verdict by in circuit court,	248	day	61
in inferior court	248	laws to take sense of people	61
right of trial by, guaranteed	7	concerning, in force in 1891	61
six persons constitute in inferior court,	248	sale on election day forbidden	154
Justices of the peace—		Local and special laws—	
bond may be required of	103	prohibition concerning	59
commissioned by the Governor	142	Long and short haul clause	218
conservators of the peace	142	Lotteries prohibited	226
districts, to be elected from	142	Malfeasance in office—	
number of	142	provision concerning	227
election and term of office	99, 142	Manufactories—	
fees of regulated by law	106	cities may exempt from taxation	170
fiscal court may be composed of	144	Mayor of cities	160
indictment of for malfeasance	227	Members of bar—	
jurisdiction of	142	form of oath to be taken by	228
number of to each county	142	Member of Congress—	
office—when to enter upon duties of	99	ineligible to State office	237
qualifications of	100	Members of Legislature—	
removal from district vacates office	142	when interested not to vote	57
term of office	99	Men—	
vacancy in office, how filled	152	armed bodies of—when not allowed	
Laborers to be paid in money	244	in State	225
Lands—		Military—	
action to recover in certain cases	251	subordinate to civil power	22
Law—		Militia—	
ex post facto not to be passed	19	Adjutant-General and staff, appoint-	
impairing contract forbidden	19	ment	222
shall relate to one subject	51	ages between which persons must	
takes effect—when	55	serve	219
Laws—		arms and banners to be safely kept	223
commission to revise	245	exemption from service in	219, 220
in force when Constitution adopted (see		Legislature to provide for	220
schedule).		officers, terms of	222
local, prohibition, concerning	59	eligible to other office	165
printing and binding of	247	organization, rules governing	221
special, prohibition, concerning	59	persons who constitute	219
style of	62	records and relics to be safely kept	223
Virginia—laws of, in force here	233	staff officers, appointment of	222
Lease of corporate property—		vacancies in list of officers, how filled,	222
not to affect liabilities	203	Mines—	
Legislative department	29	laborers in, to be paid in money	244
day—what is	42	Misdemeanor—	
Legislature— (see General Assembly).		conviction of high, disfranchises, 145, 150	

	SEC.		SEC.
Misfeasance in office—		New counties—	
provisions concerning	227	officers for	102
Minister of religion—		Nobility—	
no person required to support	5	title of, not to be granted	23
Mode of revising Constitution	256, 263	Notary public—	
Municipal corporation—		offices not incompatible with other	165
taking of private property by	242	Oath—	
Municipalities—		dueling oath required of officers	228
assignment into six classes	156	modification of	240
class, organization of each	156	form of, to be taken by all officers,	228
population of each	156	manner of administering	232
contracts not authorized by law, void,	162	Obligations—	
conviction under ordinance a bar	168	in force when constitution adopted	
council, how elected	160	(see schedule).	
removal of members	160	Occupations and trades—	
vacancy in office filled	160	taxation of	181
courts, city, provisions concerning, 166, 167		Office—	
division into classes	156	extension beyond term of years not	
into wards	160	allowed	23
election of officers, time of	148, 167	Legislature may create, to extend	
when to be held in odd years	148, 167	four years	107
fiscal officers, when eligible for re-		Offices—	
election	160	incompatible	165
franchise, sale of	164	ineligibility of member of Congress,	237
incompatible offices	165	Officers—	
indebtedness, limit of	157	bond may be required of	103, 224
legislative board, how elected	160	commissions by Governor, 113, 129, 140-142	
manufactories may be exempted from		dueling by, prohibited	239
tax	170	duties, when to enter on	236
mayor, election and term of office	160	free pass, not to accept	197
compensation	161	General Assembly, officers and em-	
ineligible for succeeding term, when	160	ployes of	249
qualifications of	160	impeachment of	68
vacancy in office, how filled	160	indictment for certain offenses	227
officers appointed or elected, when	160	malfeasance, penalty for	227
election, time of	148, 167	member of Legislature, ineligible to	
offices that are incompatible	165	certain offices	44
ordinance, penalty to be fixed by	163	militia officers, how appointed	222
conviction under, a bar	163	misfeasance, penalty for	227
police courts, provisions concerning		neglect of duties, penalty for	227
.	160, 166, 167	oath of office, how administered	232
police judge, election and term	160, 167	form of	228
removal from office	160	printing and binding not to be inter-	
term, if elected in 1890	167	ested in	247
vacancy in office, how filled	160	residence of county and district offi-	
population of the several classes	156	cers	234
removal of members of council	160	State officers	234
police judge	160	salaries of, not to be changed during	
streets, granting use of to corporation	163	term	161, 235
taxation, levy to pay indebtedness	159	deduction for neglect of duty	235
manufactories may be exempted	170	limit of five thousand dollars, ex-	
tax rates, limit of	157	cept	246
trustees, how elected	160	payment of, in certain counties	106
vacancy in council, how filled	160	payment of, to State officers	96
wards, division of into	160	sureties, release of in official bonds	238
Navy—		terms of, to be fixed	23
persons in, when not to vote	146	holding until successor qualifies, 93, 97, 99	
New counties—		not to be extended	161
creation and division of	63, 65	when not to exceed four years	107

	SEC.		SEC.
Officers—		Printing presses free	8
towns and cities, how elected	160	Prisoners entitled to bail	16
vacancy in, how filled	152	Private property—	
vacation of, by removal from district		assessment of damages	242
.	129, 140, 142	appeal from trial	242
Officer of insolvent bank—		compensation for property taken	242
penalty for receiving deposit	204	taking for public use	242
Order requiring concurrence of		Privilege—	
Houses—		of members of Legislature	43
Governor to sign	89	Privileges, grants and franchises—	
Ordinance—		amended, altered or revoked	3
municipal, penalty fixed by	168	Process—	
Parallel lines—		style of	123
not to be owned by same carrier	201	Professions—	
Pardons—		taxation of	181
Governor may grant	77	Property, private—	
not to effect certain fees	77	not to be taken without compensation	13
Parsonage—		Public debt—	
exempt from taxation	170	limit to the amount of	49
Passes, free—		purpose for which may be contracted	49
officers shall not accept	197	submission of question to vote	50
penalties to be fixed by Legislature	197	tax to be levied to pay	50
Penalties due State—		Public funds—	
before adoption of Constitution (see		officers not to use for private gain	173
Schedule).		Public money—	
Penitentiary—		drawn only upon appropriation	230
convicts to be worked in	253	statement concerning to be published	230
State to retain control of	254	Public property—	
Personal representative—		exempt from taxation	170
action for damages for death by		Public warehouses—	
wrongful act	241	subject to legislative control	206
Petition for rehearing in appellate		Punishment—	
court—		cruel, not to be inflicted	17
consideration of	118	Quarterly court—	
Places of worship—		judge of	139
exempt from taxation	170	jurisdiction of	139
no person required to maintain	5	successors of courts under old Consti-	
Police court—		tution (see schedule).	
establishment of in cities and towns,	143	Railroads—	
jurisdiction of	143	acceptance of constitution by	190
Poll tax—		agent to be located in State	194
may be imposed	180	alienation of property, liability	203
Pools and trusts—		assessment of property of	182
unlawful	198	attachment, property subject to	212
Power inherent in people—		boats, what contracts with prohibited	
all power inherent in the people	4	bonds or stocks to be issued for value	193
arbitrary power, declaration against,	2	business, that shall not be engaged in	
Powers of government—		charter, when may be revoked	205
division of	27, 28	commission, election and term of	209
Power to tax—		commonwealth shall not construct	177
shall not be surrendered	175	consolidation, when forbidden	201
(see Taxation).		Constitution, acceptance of by	190
President of Senate—		contract with another company	201
Lieutenant-Governor is	83	drawback by, forbidden	213
<i>pro tem</i> , election of	85	depot, land may be condemned	211
salary of	86	directors, election of	207
Printing and binding—		discriminations, unjust, forbidden	196
provisions concerning	247	earnings, pooling of forbidden	201
		subject to attachment	212
		eminent domain, exercise of right of,	211

	SEC.		SEC.
Railroads—		Reading—	
execution, property subject to	212	of bill before signing by speaker	56
escheat of land held by	192	Recognizances—	
factories, when not to own	210	entered into before Constitution valid.	
foreign companies, effect of consoli-		(schedule.)	
dation with domestic	200	Records—	
eminent domain	211	military, safe-keeping of	223
land, when not to be held by	211	Recovery—	
free passes not to be given	197	of damages for death or injury not	
freight to be handled on same terms		to be limited	54
.	213, 214, 215	Reform—	
jurisdiction of courts over	194, 200	House of provision for	252
land, when not to be owned	192, 210, 211	Register of land office—	
lease, prior liability not affected	203	election and term of office	91-95
long and short haul clause	218	fees collected to be paid into treasury	93
mines, when not to own	210	ineligible for succeeding term	91
parallel lines not to be owned by same		office may be abolished	94
company	201	when to enter upon duties of	91
pooling of earnings, when forbidden, 201		qualifications of	91
process, agent in State upon whom		salary of	96
process can be served	194	vacancy in office, how filled	152
purchase of parallel line forbidden	201	Registration—	
qualification and duties of commis-		of voters	147
sion	209	Relics—	
real estate, when not to be owned by,		military, preservation of	223
.	192, 210, 211	Religious sect—	
rebate forbidden	213	preference not to be given to	5
reduced rates, not to be given	197, 213	Representative—	
rolling stock personal property	212	districts, division of State into	33
short and long haul clause	218	Representatives, House of—	
stocks or bonds to be issued for value, 193		branch of legislative power	29
street construction of road in city	163	bribery of member, penalty	39
timber, when not to own	210	collector of public money, when ineli-	
tracks, intersection and uniting with, 216		gible	45
transfer of cars	213	compensation of members	42
transportation of freight and pas-		contempt of, punishment	39
senger	196	contested election of members	38
trunk line, occupation of streets	163	districts, division of State into	33
vessels, what contracts with prohib-		election and term of office	30, 31
ited	201	employes that may be elected by	249
Railroad Commission—		expulsion of, causes that justify	39, 57
appointment of until 1895	209	impeachment, House has sole power,	66
compensation of	209	interested in measure, not to vote	57
districts from which elected	209	mileage of members	42
election and term of office	209	number of members	35
long and short hauls, concerning	218	office, to which ineligible	44
misfeasance and nonfeasance, pen-		officers, that may be chosen by	34, 249
alty	209	privilege of members	43
oath—form of to be taken	228	punishment for disorderly behavior	39
penalty for misfeasance or nonfeas-		qualification of members	32
ance	209	salary, deduction for neglect of duty,	235
powers and duties of	209	Resolution, Joint—	
qualifications and duties	209	to be presented to Governor	89
residence to be in district	234	Return of elections—	
vacancy in office, how filled	152, 209	Legislature to provide for	153
Railway, street—		Revenue and taxation—	
conditions under which tracks laid	163	(see taxation).	
Railway, trunk—		Revision of—	
provisions concerning	164	Constitution	256, 263

	SEC.		SEC.
Revocation of charters—		Secretary of State—	
for abuse of power	205	term of office	91
Right of way—		vacancy in office, how filled	152
when foreign corporation may acquire,	211	veto messages, duty concerning	88
Rolling stock of railroads—		Separate schools	187
may be levied on	212	Senate—	
Salaries of public officers—		branch of legislative power	29
deduction from, for neglect of duty	235	bribery of Senator, penalty for	39
employes of Legislature to be fixed	249	classification of	31
limit of, except Governor	246	collector of public money, when not	
officers that shall only be paid by	96	eligible	45
shall not be changed during term, 161, 235		compensation of	42
Schedule—		contempt of, punishment for	39
actions, contracts, prosecutions, sub. 1		contested election	38
concerning pre-existing laws . sub. 1		districts, division of State into	33
courts generally sub. 3		election and term of office 30, 31	
inconsistent laws sub. 1		employes that may be elected by	249
laws that require legislation . sub. 1		expulsion of Senator, cause for 39, 57	
obligations entered into sub. 2		impeachment, trial of by	67
officers generally sub. 5		interested in measure not to vote	57
quarterly courts sub. 6		mileage of	42
State officers elected in 1891 . sub. 4		number of	35
taxes, penalties, forfeitures . . sub. 2		officers that may be elected by	34
transfer of actions sub. 2		office to which not eligible	44
School fund—		privileges of	43
A. & M. College, tax for	184	qualifications of	32
colored and white children to share,	187	salary, deduction for neglect of duty,	235
counties entitled to surplus	186	term of office	30, 31
interest, payment of on	185	Senatorial districts—	
pro rata division of	186	division of State into	33
sectarian purposes, not devoted to	189	Sessions of Legislature—	
surplus, counties entitled to	186	length of	42
to be preserved inviolate	184	Sheriff—	
white and colored children to share,	187	bond shall be required of	103
School trustees—		deputy, when ineligible to act as	99
election of	155	election and term of office	99
Schools, common—		fees to be regulated by law	106
compulsory education concerning	5	in certain counties	106
elections concerning	155	Governor can not remit fees of	77
Legislature to provide system	184	indictment of for neglect of duties	227
sectarian, fund not devoted to	189	ineligible for succeeding term	99
separate, for white and colored pupils,	187	jailer, office may be consolidated	105
tax rate in municipalities	157	malfeasance or misfeasance, penalty,	227
Search and seizure—		office, when to enter upon duties of	99
Unreasonable, forbidden	10	qualifications of	100
Seat of Government—		residence to be in county	234
to remain at Frankfort	255	term of office	99
Secretary of State—		vacancy in office, how filled	152
amendments to Constitution, duty	257	Sinking fund—	
appointed, until 1895 (see schedule)	95	commissioners of, duties	185
compensation of	96	provisions concerning	48
duties of, prescribed by law	91	resources not to be diminished	48
election and term of office 91-95		Slavery—	
fees, to be paid into treasury	93	except as punishment, forbidden	25
ineligible for succeeding term	93	Soldiers—	
office, when to enter upon duties of	91	quartering of, forbidden	22
qualifications of	91	Special and local laws—	
register of official acts to be kept by,	91	prohibition concerning	59
Senate, when to be president of	87		

	SEC.		SEC.
Special or excise tax—		Superintendent of Public Instruction—	
may be imposed	181	ineligible for succeeding term	93
Special judges—		office, when to enter upon duties of	91
appellate court	117	qualifications of	91
circuit court	136	term of office	91
Spirituuous liquors—		vacancy in office, how filled	152
elections to regulate sale of	61	Superior Court—	
laws not repealed by Constitution	61	abolished	119
sale of on election day forbidden	154	Sureties of public officers—	
Staff officers—		release of, from bonds	238
Governor shall appoint	222	Surplus school fund—	
State officers—		investment and distribution of	186
not to accept free pass	197	Surveyor—	
Attorney-General (see Attorney-Gen- eral).		bond shall be required of	103
Auditor of Public Accounts (see Au- ditor of Public Accounts).		election and term of office	99
Commissioner of Agriculture (see Com- missioner of Agriculture).		fees to be regulated by law	106
Governor (see Governor).		indictment against, for neglect	227
Register of Land Office (see Register of Land Office).		malfeasance or misfeasance, penalty, 227	
Secretary of State (see Secretary of State).		office, when to enter upon duties of	99
Superintendent of Public Instruction (see Superintendent of Public In- struction).		qualifications of	100
Treasurer (see Treasurer).		residence to be in county	234
State Treasury—		term of office	99
examination of accounts of	53	vacancy in office, how filled	152
money which may be drawn from	230	Suspending laws—	
publication concerning accounts of	230	powers of, vested in Legislature	15
Statute—		Taxation—	
offense against, barred by conviction under ordinance	168	A. & M. College, in aid of	184
Steamboat—		assessment of property for	172
transportation of freight regulated, 196		cities, right conferred upon to impose, 181	
Steam-heating company—		tax-rate in	157
pipes of, may be laid in cities	163	common school, tax in aid of	184
Stock used for breeding purposes—		corporate property, how taxed	174
license fees for	181	excise tax may be imposed	181
Stockholders—		exemption of property from	170
State shall not become	177	franchise may be taxed	174, 181
votes that may be cast for directors, 207		general laws, to be imposed by	171
Stock running at large—		incomes may be taxed	174
special laws concerning, forbidden	59	law imposing, to specify purpose of	180
Style of—		levied for one purpose not to be de- voted to another	180
laws	62	license tax may be imposed	174, 181
process	123	limit of rate	157, 158
Suffrage and elections—		manufactories may be exempted	170
(see elections).		occupations may be taxed	181
school elections	155	officer not to receive gain from	173
Suits against State—		ordinance to specify purpose	180
when may be brought	231	power of shall not be surrendered	175
Superintendent of Public Instruction—		poll tax may be levied	180
compensation of	96	professions may be taxed	181
duties prescribed by law	91	railroad property, assessment of	182
election and term of office	91-95	special may be imposed	181
fees, to be paid into Treasury	93	stock used for breeding purposes	181
		towns, tax rate in	157, 158
		right conferred upon to impose	181
		trades may be taxed	181
		uniform shall be	171
		Telegraph companies—	
		business shall be exchanged between, 199	
		cities may control laying of wires in, 199	

	SEC.	SEC.
Telegraph companies—		
connection of lines with other lines	199	
parallel lines not to be owned by same company	201	
right of to construct lines	199	
subject to legislative control	199	
Telephone companies—		
business shall be exchanged between,	199	
cities may control laying wires	163, 199	
connection of lines with other lines	199	
parallel lines not to be owned by same company	201	
right of to construct lines	199	
subject to legislative control	199	
Title of nobility—		
shall not be conferred	23	
Towns—		
(see municipalities).		
Trades—		
may be taxed	181	
Transfer lines—		
operating railway, control of,	196, 213, 217	
Transportation—		
freight and passengers, control of	196, 213, 217	
Treason—		
attainder by Legislature forbidden	20	
offense that constitutes	229	
testimony necessary to convict	229	
Treasurer, State,		
accounts of to be investigated	53	
compensation of	96	
duties prescribed by law	91	
election and term of office	93-95	
fees collected to be paid into treasury,	93	
ineligible for succeeding term	93	
investigation of, accounts of	53	
office, when to enter upon duties of	91	
qualifications of	91	
term of office	91	
vacancy in office, how filled	152	
Trial by jury—		
ancient mode inviolate	7	
in inferior courts	248	
majority verdict may be authorized,	248	
Trusts—		
laws to be enacted prohibiting	198	
Vacancy in office, how filled—		
elective officers generally	152	
Governor	85	
member of Legislature	152	
militia	222	
officers for State at large	152	
for districts	152	
for counties	152	
for cities and towns	152	
railroad commission	152, 209	
Verdicts—		
majority allowed	248	
Venue—		
change, to State and accused	11	
Veto—		
power of Governor	88	
Virginia—		
laws of that are in force here	233	
Voters—(see elections).		
Wage-earners—		
to be paid in lawful money	244	
Warehouses—		
when subject to State control	206	
Warrant—		
search, issual of when allowed	10	
unreasonable forbidden	10	
Water company—		
cities may control laying of pipes by,	163	
White and colored pupils—		
separate schools for	187	
Witness—		
accused not required to testify	11	
Work-shops—		
laborers in to be paid in lawful money,	244	
Writs issued prior to Constitution		
valid—(see schedule).		